

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Fifty-fourth Legislative Assembly

* * * * *

Bismarck, January 26, 1995

The House convened at 8:30 a.m., with Speaker Martin presiding.

The prayer was offered by the Rev. James Baneck, Messiah Lutheran Church, Mandan.

The roll was called and all members were present.

A quorum was declared by the Speaker.

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS

The amendments on the Sixth order of business to HB 1048, HB 1219, HB 1221, HB 1224, HB 1225, HB 1227, HB 1252, HB 1326, HB 1357, HB 1403, HB 1410, and HB 1480 were adopted.

HB 1048, HB 1219, HB 1221, HB 1224, HB 1225, HB 1227, HB 1252, HB 1326, HB 1357, HB 1403, HB 1410, and HB 1480, as amended, were placed on the Eleventh order of business for the succeeding legislative day.

MOTION

REP. WARDNER MOVED that HB 1430 be returned to the House floor from the Government and Veterans Affairs Committee for the purpose of withdrawal, which motion prevailed.

REQUEST

REP. GROSZ REQUESTED the unanimous consent of the House to withdraw HB 1430. There being no objection, it was so ordered by the Speaker.

MOTION

REP. BERG MOVED that HB 1253, which is on the Eleventh order, be rereferred to the Industry, Business and Labor Committee, which motion prevailed. Pursuant to Rep. Berg's motion, HB 1253 was rereferred.

MOTION

REP. KELSCH MOVED that the House reconsider its action whereby Engrossed HB 1240 failed to pass, which motion prevailed on a verification vote.

Engrossed HB 1240 was placed on the Eleventh order.

MOTION

REP. KRETSCHMAR MOVED that Engrossed HB 1240 be laid over one legislative day or thereafter, which motion prevailed.

MOTION

REP. DORSO MOVED that HB 1051 be placed at the bottom of the calendar, which motion prevailed.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1123: A BILL for an Act relating to fiscal notes for legislative bills or resolutions that have a fiscal impact on counties, cities, or school districts.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 12 YEAS, 86 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Boucher; Coats; Gulleon; Hagle; Kerzman; Kroeber; Laughlin; Maragos; Sandvig; Schmidt; Wilkie

NAYS: Austin; Bateman; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehm; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christenson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; DeWitz; Dobrinski; Dorso; Drovdal; Freier; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Glassheim; Gorder; Gorman; Grosz; Grumbo; Gunter; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar, D.; Henegar, K.; Holm; Howard; Huether; Jacobs; Johnson; Kaldor; Keiser; Kelsch; Kempenich; Klein; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Kunkel; Lloyd; Mahoney; Martinson; Mickelson; Monson; Mutzenberger; Nicholas; Nichols; Nottestad; Oban; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Rydell; Sabby; Schimke; Shide; Sitz; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjem; Svedjan; Sveen; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wentz; Speaker Martin

Engrossed HB 1123 was declared lost.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1054: A BILL for an Act to require every state agency and institution to prepare a written analysis documenting the decision to acquire the use of any asset as the result of a lease; and to create and enact a new subsection to section 54-44.1-06 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the contents of budget data prepared by the director of the budget.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 98 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Austin; Bateman; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehm; Boucher; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christenson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Coats; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; DeWitz; Dobrinski; Dorso; Drovdal; Freier; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Glassheim; Gorder; Gorman; Grosz; Grumbo; Gulleon; Gunter; Hagle; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar, D.; Henegar, K.; Holm; Howard; Huether; Jacobs; Johnson; Kaldor; Keiser; Kelsch; Kempenich; Kerzman; Klein; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Lloyd; Mahoney; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Monson; Mutzenberger; Nicholas; Nichols; Nottestad; Oban; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Rydell; Sabby; Sandvig; Schimke; Schmidt; Shide; Sitz; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjem; Svedjan; Sveen; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wentz; Wilkie; Speaker Martin

Engrossed HB 1054 passed and the title was agreed to.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1103: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 44-08-04 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to state employee travel reimbursement.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 98 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Austin; Bateman; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehm; Boucher; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christenson; Christopherson; Clark;

Clayburgh; Coats; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; DeWitz; Dobrinski; Dorso; Drovdal; Freier; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Glassheim; Gorder; Gorman; Grosz; Grumbo; Gulleson; Gunter; Hagle; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar, D.; Henegar, K.; Holm; Howard; Huether; Jacobs; Johnson; Kaldor; Keiser; Kelsch; Kempenich; Kerzman; Klein; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Lloyd; Mahoney; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Monson; Mutzenberger; Nicholas; Nichols; Nottestad; Oban; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Rydell; Sabby; Sandvig; Schimke; Schmidt; Shide; Sitz; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjem; Svedjan; Sveen; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wentz; Wilkie; Speaker Martin

Engrossed HB 1103 passed and the title was agreed to.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1163: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 39-21-41.4 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the requirement of safety belts for people with medical or physically disabling conditions.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 98 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Austin; Bateman; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehm; Boucher; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christenson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Coats; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; DeWitz; Dobrinski; Dorso; Drovdal; Freier; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Glassheim; Gorder; Gorman; Grosz; Grumbo; Gulleson; Gunter; Hagle; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar, D.; Henegar, K.; Holm; Howard; Huether; Jacobs; Johnson; Kaldor; Keiser; Kelsch; Kempenich; Kerzman; Klein; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Lloyd; Mahoney; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Monson; Mutzenberger; Nicholas; Nichols; Nottestad; Oban; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Rydell; Sabby; Sandvig; Schimke; Schmidt; Shide; Sitz; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjem; Svedjan; Sveen; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wentz; Wilkie; Speaker Martin

Engrossed HB 1163 passed and the title was agreed to.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1295: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 15-34.2 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the equipping and use of seatbelts on schoolbuses.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO NOT PASS, the roll was called and there were 14 YEAS, 84 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Glassheim; Grumbo; Gulleson; Hagle; Keiser; Kretschmar; Laughlin; Maragos; Mutzenberger; Nottestad; Oban; Rydell; Wentz; Wilkie

NAYS: Aarsvold; Austin; Bateman; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehm; Boucher; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christenson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Coats; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; DeWitz; Dobrinski; Dorso; Drovdal; Freier; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Gorder; Gorman; Grosz; Gunter; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar, D.; Henegar, K.; Holm; Howard; Huether; Jacobs; Johnson; Kaldor; Kelsch; Kempenich;

Kerzman; Klein; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kroeber; Kunkel; Lloyd; Mahoney; Martinson; Mickelson; Monson; Nicholas; Nichols; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Sabby; Sandvig; Schimke; Schmidt; Shide; Sitz; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjem; Sveen; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Speaker Martin

Engrossed HB 1295 was declared lost.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (ROY GILBREATH, CHIEF CLERK)

MADAM PRESIDENT: The House has passed and your favorable consideration is requested on: HB 1042, HB 1052, HB 1070, HB 1078, HB 1081, HB 1086, HB 1105, HB 1114, HB 1118, HB 1124, HB 1148, HB 1180, HB 1181, HB 1183, HB 1223, HB 1244, HB 1256, HB 1262, HB 1263, HB 1304, HB 1315, HCR 3001, HCR 3006.

HOUSE ENROLLING REPORT

The following resolution was enrolled: HCMR 7501.

SIGNING OF RESOLUTION

The Speaker signed the following enrolled resolution: HCMR 7501.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (ROY GILBREATH, CHIEF CLERK)

MADAM PRESIDENT: The Speaker has signed and your signature is respectfully requested on: HCMR 7501.

HOUSE ENGRESSING REPORT

The following bills were engrossed: HB 1048, HB 1219, HB 1221, HB 1224, HB 1225, HB 1227, HB 1252, HB 1326, HB 1357, HB 1403, HB 1410, HB 1480.

MOTION

REP. FREIER MOVED that the House be on the Fifth, Ninth, Twelfth, and Thirteenth orders of business and at the conclusion of those orders, the House stand adjourned until 8:30 a.m., Friday, January 27, 1995, which motion prevailed.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1028: Industry, Business and Labor Committee (Rep. Berg, Chairman) recommends **DO NOT PASS** (11 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1028 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1036: Education Committee (Rep. Rydell, Chairman) recommends **AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS** and when so amended, recommends **DO PASS** (15 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1036 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 11, after "valid" insert "North Dakota"

Renumber accordingly

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1164: Judiciary Committee (Rep. Kretschmar, Chairman) recommends **DO PASS** (9 YEAS, 5 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1164 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1199: Judiciary Committee (Rep. Kretschmar, Chairman) recommends **AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS** and when so amended, recommends **DO PASS** (11 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1199 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 4, line 10, after "of" insert "an advertising agency,"

Renumber accordingly

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1206: Industry, Business and Labor Committee (Rep. Berg, Chairman) recommends DO PASS (14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1206 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1226: Industry, Business and Labor Committee (Rep. Berg, Chairman) recommends DO PASS (14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1226 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1228: Industry, Business and Labor Committee (Rep. Berg, Chairman) recommends DO PASS (13 YEAS, 1 NAY, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1228 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1282: Education Committee (Rep. Rydell, Chairman) recommends DO NOT PASS (12 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1282 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1312: Industry, Business and Labor Committee (Rep. Berg, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (15 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1312 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 9 , remove "direct"

Renumber accordingly

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1338: Judiciary Committee (Rep. Kretschmar, Chairman) recommends DO PASS (12 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1338 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1339: Judiciary Committee (Rep. Kretschmar, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1339 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 14, remove the overstrike over "~~A lessor may not demand or receive security, however~~"

Page 1, line 15, remove the overstrike over "~~denominated, in an amount or value in excess of one month's rent~~" and insert immediately thereafter ", except if the lessee is housing a pet on the leased premises, the security may not exceed one thousand five hundred dollars" and remove the overstrike over the period

Renumber accordingly

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1340: Judiciary Committee (Rep. Kretschmar, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (11 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1340 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 20, remove the overstrike over "~~or, if the party cannot be found, then by the sheriff of the county~~" and insert immediately thereafter "or a process server"

Page 1, line 21, remove the overstrike over "~~posting the notice conspicuously upon the~~" and after "~~premise~~" insert "premises"

Renumber accordingly

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1348: Education Committee (Rep. Rydell, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (12 YEAS, 1 NAY, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1348 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 2, line 1, after "requirements" insert "of subsection 1 of section 15-34.1-03"

Page 2, line 8, replace "has met" with "meets or exceeds"

Page 2, line 11, after "capacity" insert "for each twenty-five students"

Page 2, line 12, replace "aptitude" with "achievement"

Renumber accordingly

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1354: Education Committee (Rep. Rydell, Chairman) recommends DO NOT PASS (12 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1354 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1361: Judiciary Committee (Rep. Kretschmar, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1361 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 1, replace "section" with "sections 43-07-20 and"

Page 1, line 2, after "to" insert "employment preferences for North Dakota residents and veterans and to the"

Page 1, after line 4, insert:

"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 43-07-20 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

43-07-20. Employment preference in contract. In all contracts, except those which involve federal-aid funds and where a preference or discrimination would be contrary to a federal law or regulation, hereafter let for state, county, city, school district, or township construction, repair, or maintenance work under any laws of this state, there shall be inserted a provision by which the contractor must give preference to the employment of bona fide North Dakota residents, as determined by section 54-01-26, with preference given first to honorably discharged disabled veterans and veterans of the armed forces of the United States, as defined in section 37-19.1-01, who are deemed to be qualified in the performance of ~~said~~ that work. ~~Such~~ The preference shall not apply to engineering, superintendence, management, or office or clerical work.

No contract shall be let to any person, firm, association, cooperative, corporation, or limited liability company refusing to execute an agreement containing the aforementioned provisions."

Renumber accordingly

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1364: Judiciary Committee (Rep. Kretschmar, Chairman) recommends DO PASS (13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1364 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1371: Judiciary Committee (Rep. Kretschmar, Chairman) recommends DO PASS (14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1371 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1395: Judiciary Committee (Rep. Kretschmar, Chairman) recommends DO PASS (14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1395 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1413: Human Services Committee (Rep. Svedjan, Chairman) recommends DO NOT PASS (12 YEAS, 1 NAY, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1413 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1414: Industry, Business and Labor Committee (Rep. Berg, Chairman) recommends DO NOT PASS (14 YEAS, 1 NAY, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1414 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1420: Industry, Business and Labor Committee (Rep. Berg, Chairman) recommends DO NOT PASS (10 YEAS, 5 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1420 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1433: Education Committee (Rep. Rydell, Chairman) recommends DO PASS (14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1433 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1434: Human Services Committee (Rep. Svedjan, Chairman) recommends DO NOT PASS (9 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1434 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1436: Judiciary Committee (Rep. Kretschmar, Chairman) recommends DO PASS (12 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1436 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1445: Industry, Business and Labor Committee (Rep. Berg, Chairman) recommends DO NOT PASS (14 YEAS, 1 NAY, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1445 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1460: Finance and Taxation Committee (Rep. Timm, Chairman) recommends DO NOT PASS (13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1460 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1466: Industry, Business and Labor Committee (Rep. Berg, Chairman) recommends DO NOT PASS (12 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1466 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1482: Appropriations Committee (Rep. Dalrymple, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO NOT PASS (15 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 5 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1482 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 2, after "farmer" insert "revolving" and remove "guarantee"

Page 1, line 5, after "farmer" insert "revolving" and remove "guarantee"

Renumber accordingly

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2120: Judiciary Committee (Rep. Kretschmar, Chairman) recommends **AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS** and when so amended, recommends **DO PASS** (14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2120 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 14, after "misdemeanor" insert "or an infraction"

Renumber accordingly

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM C. PARKER, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The President has signed: HCMR 7501.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM C. PARKER, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has passed and your favorable consideration is requested on: SB 2018, SB 2021, SB 2032, SB 2087, SB 2124, SB 2230, SB 2240.

FIRST READING OF HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

Rep. Maragos introduced:

HCR 3028: A concurrent resolution for the repeal of sections 6, 7, and 19 of article X of the Constitution of North Dakota, relating to a poll tax on males, an acreage tax for hail damage indemnification, and terminal grain elevators in Minnesota or Wisconsin.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Joint Constitutional Revision Committee**.

Rep. Maragos introduced:

HCR 3029: A concurrent resolution for amendment of section 1 of article XI of the Constitution of North Dakota, relating to the description of the boundary of North Dakota.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Joint Constitutional Revision Committee**.

Rep. Maragos introduced:

HCR 3030: A concurrent resolution to create and enact a new section to article XIII of the Constitution of North Dakota, relating to the compact with the United States; and for the amendment of sections 1 and 2 of article XIII of the Constitution of North Dakota, relating to jurisdiction over certain military reservations.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Joint Constitutional Revision Committee**.

Rep. Maragos introduced:

HCR 3031: A concurrent resolution to create and enact a new article IX of the Constitution of North Dakota, relating to school and institutional trust funds and the sale of school or institutional lands; to repeal the present article IX of the Constitution of North Dakota, relating to trust lands; and to provide an effective date.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Joint Constitutional Revision Committee**.

Reps. Tollefson, Wentz, Mickelson, K. Henegar and Sens. Redlin, Yockim introduced:

HCR 3032: A concurrent resolution expressing support for the development of the Central North American Trade Corridor.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Transportation Committee**.

Reps. Stenehjem, Sveen, Grosz, Klein and Sens. Kringstad, Thane introduced:

HCR 3033: A concurrent resolution directing the Legislative Council to study the role and mission of the Milk Stabilization Board, including the effectiveness and necessity of regulating the production, transportation, processing, storage, distribution, and sale of milk and milk products.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Agriculture Committee**.

Reps. Kretschmar, Kroeber and Sens. Malewaja, Redlin, O'Connell introduced:

HCR 3034: A concurrent resolution for the amendment of section 7 of article IV of the Constitution of North Dakota, relating to regular sessions of the legislative assembly.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Joint Constitutional Revision Committee**.

Rep. Kretschmar introduced:

HCR 3035: A concurrent resolution to create and enact two new sections to article V of the Constitution of North Dakota, relating to executive branch organization and a state planning council.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Joint Constitutional Revision Committee**.

Reps. Gorder, Kerzman, Schimke, Wardner and Sens. O'Connell, Wanzek introduced:

HCR 3036: A concurrent resolution to create and enact a new section to article I of the Constitution of North Dakota, relating to the right of parents to direct the upbringing and education of their children.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Joint Constitutional Revision Committee**.

Reps. Brown, Bernstein, Dorso and Sens. Mutch, Traynor introduced:

HCR 3037: A concurrent resolution for the amendment of subsection 2 of section 1 of article XIII of the Constitution of North Dakota, relating to the disclaimer of the interest of the state in unappropriated public lands; and to provide an effective date.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Joint Constitutional Revision Committee**.

FIRST READING OF SENATE BILLS

SB 2018: A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation to the tax commissioner for payment of state reimbursement under the homestead tax credit.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Appropriations Committee**.

SB 2021: A BILL for an Act making an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state game and fish department.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Appropriations Committee**.

SB 2032: A BILL for an Act to create and enact section 54-16-00.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to definitions; and to amend and reenact sections 54-16-01, 54-16-02, 54-16-03, 54-16-04, 54-16-04.1, 54-16-04.2, 54-16-05, 54-16-08, 54-16-09, 54-16-10, 54-16-11, 54-16-11.1, and 54-16-12 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the powers and duties of the emergency commission.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Appropriations Committee**.

SB 2087: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 12.1-31-07 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the penalty for failure to care for a vulnerable elderly adult.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Human Services Committee**.

SB 2124: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 15-03-05.2, 15-03-16, 15-35-01.1, and 15-60-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the distribution of income earned by the permanent funds managed by the board of university and school lands, continuing appropriations for certain board of university and school lands investment fees, approval of school district construction projects, and issuance of school construction loans; and to repeal section 15-03-15 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the approval of farm loans and investments by the board of university and school lands.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Education Committee**.

SB 2230: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 26.1-36-07 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to health insurance coverage for newborn and adopted children.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Industry, Business and Labor Committee.**

SB 2240: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 30.1-30 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the making of gifts under a power of attorney.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Judiciary Committee.**

DELIVERY OF ENROLLED RESOLUTION

The following enrolled resolution was delivered to the Secretary of State for his filing at the hour of 2:00 p.m., January 26, 1995: HCMR 7501.

The House stood adjourned pursuant to Representative Freier's motion.

ROY GILBREATH, Chief Clerk